Climate and City Resilience Committee

Thursday, 5th December, 2024

HYBRID MEETING OF THE CLIMATE AND CITY RESILIENCE COMMITTEE

Members present: Councillor R-M Donnelly (Chairperson);

Aldermen Copeland and McCoubrey;

Councillors Anglin, Bell, Bower, Brennan, R. Brooks,

T. Brooks, Bunting, P. Doherty, M. Donnelly, P. Donnelly, S. Douglas, Flynn and Walsh.

In attendance: Mr. J. Tully, Director of City and Organisational Strategy;

Ms. D. Caldwell, Climate Commissioner;

Ms. C. Shortt, Monitoring, Learning and Reporting Officer;

and

Mrs. L. McLornan, Committee Services Officer.

Apologies

No apologies were reported.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of 7th November were taken as read and signed as correct. It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting on 2nd December.

Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were recorded.

Global Destination Sustainability Index for 2024

The Monitoring, Learning and Reporting Officer advised the Committee that the Global Destination Sustainability (GDS) Index was a destination-level programme which measured, benchmarked and improved the sustainability strategy and performance of tourism and events destinations.

She reported that the GDS-Index was the leading destination-level performance measurement and benchmarking tool. The Committee was advised that it was a third-party evaluation and that it scored a destination under the following themes:

- **Environmental** Including a city's performance pertaining to its policies and infrastructure, such as climate change commitment, carbon emissions, renewable energies, resource and water management, public transport, and air pollution levels.
- Social Indicating the performance of the city against indicators of SDG integration, Corruption, Personal Safety, Access to Information and Communications, Health and Wellness, and Inclusivity, using

Climate and City Resilience Committee Thursday, 5th December, 2024

external sources such as the Social Progress Imperative Index, and Corruption Perceptions Index.

- **Supplier** Addressing the sustainability commitment and performance of the local meetings' industry supply chain, including airports, events agencies, hotels, venues, and restaurants.
- **Destination management performance** Indicating the sustainability commitment, including questions pertaining to maturity of a destination's sustainability and regeneration strategy, leadership, communication of sustainability initiatives (to support client planners), and the accuracy of heir reporting on sustainability operations.

The Members were advised that there were 77 indicators assessing policies and infrastructure, destination management and sustainability performance amongst the tourism supply-chain across each of the themes. The survey had been expanded in 2024 to include regenerative tourism, circular economy practices and enhanced climate action.

The Monitoring, Learning and Reporting Officer highlighted that the GDS-Index results for 2024 recognised Belfast as the most sustainable visitor destination within the UK and Ireland. The Members were advised that, through the collaborative efforts of Visit Belfast, Belfast City Council and a wide range of tourism industry partners, Belfast now ranked as the most sustainable visitor destination in the UK and on the island of Ireland. It was noted that, in 2023, Belfast had ranked 11th and that it had moved up to 9th place this year, alongside Sydney, Singapore, Oslo and Copenhagen, which were also within the Top 10.

The Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, thanked the officers for the hard work which had been undertaken to attain the result for the City.

The Climate Commissioner suggested that the Committee would invite Visit Belfast to present at a future meeting to discuss the measures which had been undertaken to achieve the high ranking.

After discussion the Committee:

- noted that Belfast had been ranked in 9th place in the 2024 Global Destination Sustainability Index and that it was now the highestranking destination in the UK and on the island of Ireland; and
- agreed to invite Visit Belfast to present at a future meeting.

Heat Network Update

The Committee considered the undernoted report:

- "1.0 Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues
- 1.1 To update members on the ongoing work to explore a heat network in the city centre.

2.0 Recommendation

- 2.1 Note the contents of the report, specifically the following updates:
 - i The internal Heat Network Working Group established to help support delivery has been expanded to include the Senior Programme Delivery Manager in Property & Projects and the Marketing Manager, City Development.
 - ii A technical advisor (AECOM) has been appointed to develop a heat map of a heat network in the city centre by Feb 2025.
 - iii A commercial and legal advisor (Bird and Bird) has been appointed to advise Council on the legislative and regulatory requirements, potential delivery models and procurement implications associated with connecting to a heat network.

3.0 Main Report

3.1 Background

- 3.2 Belfast has a high dependence on gas and oil for heating buildings across the city and low levels of insulation which is contributing to high emissions of greenhouse gas and high levels of fuel poverty exacerbated by the energy and cost of living crisis. Unlike power and transport, decarbonising heat in buildings can be challenging due to age and quality of the building stock.
- 3.3 Belfast's high density residential areas in close proximity to significant base loads (buildings with a high heat demand) and local sources of waste heat is unusual for most cities and make it ideal for a heat network.
- 3.4 Heat networks are one of five priority projects identified in the Local Area Energy Plan as a cost-effective measure to decarbonise the city, reduce fuel poverty, create employment and reduce exposure of households and local businesses to price volatility from imported fossil fuels. A heat network would make a significant contribution to Belfast's emission reduction targets 66% reduction by 2025; 80% by 2030; 100% by 2050 and also to Northern Ireland's 'net-zero' emissions target of 2050. as well as reduce fuel poverty.

Various low carbon technology options exist: geothermal, water source heat pump etc. Heat networks tend to be marginal investments with high upfront costs. Attracting private sector finance is challenging in the absence of any grant funding – schemes in other parts of the UK provide 50% capex funding.

In order to create a strong value proposition and compete for investment, proponents of this scheme will have to consider:

- including measures that reduce the operating costs utilise such as waste heat, a direct wire to a wind or solar facility (which reduces the electricity costs of heating the water), consider producing cooling as well as heat and grid constraint payments;
- coordinate a sizeable base load of initial off-takers are willing to sign heat supply agreements to give confidence to investors that an initial upfront investment will yield a financial return;
- providing land to establish an energy centre; and
- engaging with central government departments to advocate for grant support.

Off-takers will typically be required to sign a 15-20 year heat supply agreement with a commitment to only use heat from the network. Costs will include a connection fee, a fixed charge for O&M and a variable charge depending on the amount of heat drawn off the network.

3.1 Progress update

Following the last update to members in February 2024.

3.2

1. The internal Heat Network Working Group (comprising representatives from Climate Team, Procurement, Property and Projects, and Legal Services) established to help support delivery has been expanded to include the Senior Programme Delivery Manager in Property & Projects and the Marketing Manager, City Development.

3.3

2. A technical advisor (AECOM) has been appointed to develop a heat map of a heat network in the city centre - The Climate Team is currently working through a long RFI from AECOM which involves requesting data from 3rd parties. A heat supply analysis and the low and zero carbon heat source analysis is largely complete (pending receipt of sewer mapping data from NIW). Heat demand clusters and potential Energy Centre locations are also being identified. This will enable AECOM to commence the design and optioneering ahead of the technoeconomic modelling.

3.4

 A commercial and legal advisor (Bird and Bird) has been appointed to advise Council on the legislative and regulatory requirements, potential delivery models and procurement implications associated with connecting to a heat network. This has involved meetings with some of the potential off-takers (EANI, NIHE, QUB and UU) that could provide large heat loads for phase 1 and a workshop with CMT. The potential delivery models for delivering city-scale heat networks were presented to Committee in November include:

- a. Local Authority Delivered;
- b. Private Sector Delivered; and
- c. Local Authority (Public/Private) Joint Venture (JV ESCo; Infrastructure/Operation Split; Concession; and Strategic Partnership).
- 4. A Project Manager (from Arup) has been appointed to coordinate the Innovate UK funded Net Zero Belfast Pathfinder project (£150K) which commenced in June 2024 to de-risk a heat network and a solar PV project.
- 5. Engagement has also continued with other key stakeholders including DFE and the NI Utility Regulator on the potential use of a private heat network in Belfast as a use case to inform the development regulatory framework for heat networks in NI.

3.5 Next steps

- 1. Continue to engage with all of the stakeholders above.
- 2. Delivery of a heat map of a heat network in the city centre by AECOM (anticipated Feb 2025).
- 3. Continue to work with Bird and Bird to ensure Belfast is the client of choice in a competitive landscape for heat developers.
- 4. Continue to deliver the Innovate UK funded Net Zero Belfast Pathfinder project in partnership with the Energy Systems Catapult (with an update to members in due course). This work will include an opportunities assessment for local communities.
- 5. Continue the support and oversight of the programme of work by the internal Heat Network Working Group.

3.6 Financial and Resource Implications

The project is funded via the £150k funding award from Innovate UK and in-year City and Organisational Strategy budget.

3.7 <u>Equality or Good Relations Implications/</u> Rural Needs Assessment

None identified. Engagement with Equality and Rural Needs team is ongoing across the Programme."

Climate and City Resilience Committee Thursday, 5th December, 2024

The Committee noted the contents of the report and agreed to receive a presentation from the Gateshead project at a future meeting.

Notices of Motion - Quarterly Update

The Director of City and Organisational Strategy provided the Committee with an update on the Motions and Issues Raised in Advance for which it was responsible.

He outlined that an Issue Raised in Advance, namely to receive a presentation on the Connswater Community Greenway, was recommended for closure given that it had since taken place.

The Committee:

- noted the updates on the Notices of Motion and Issues Raised in Advance that it was responsible for; and
- agreed to the closure of the Issue Raised in Advance, "Presentation on a vision for the Connswater Community Greenway".

Chairperson